
Board Meeting Package 

January 14, 2026 
3:30 p.m. 

Meeting Location: 

Lecanto Government Building 
Room 166 

3600 W. Sovereign Path 
Lecanto, Florida 34461 



Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority 

Board of Directors 
Effective January 2026

Office Board Members 

Chair The Honorable Jerry Campbell 

Vice Chair The Honorable Don Wiley 

Treasurer The Honorable Marcos Flores 

Jurisdiction Board Members 

Citrus County 
The Honorable Diana Finegan 

The Honorable Jeff Kinnard 

Hernando County 
The Honorable Ryan Amsler 

The Honorable Jerry Campbell 

Marion County 

The Honorable Kathy Bryant 

The Honorable Michelle Stone 

The Honorable Carl Zalak 

Sumter County 
The Honorable Todd Coon 

The Honorable Don Wiley 

City of Belleview The Honorable Ray Dwyer 

City of Brooksville The Honorable Thomas Bronson 

City of Wildwood The Honorable Marcos Flores 

City of Inverness The Honorable Gene Davis 

Meeting Dates 
The schedule of meetings for the 2025-2026 fiscal year are as follows: 

November 12, 2025 
January 14, 2026 
March 18, 2026 

May 20, 2026 
July 15, 2026 

September 9, 2026 



January 5, 2026 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Water Supply Authority Board of Directors and Interested Parties 

From: Suzannah J. Folsom, Executive Director 

Subject: Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority Board of Directors Meeting 

The Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority will hold a regular business meeting on 
Wednesday, January 14, 2026, 3:30 p.m., at the Lecanto Government Center Building, 
Room 166, 3600 Sovereign Path, Lecanto, FL  34461. 

Enclosed for your review are the following items: 

• Agenda
• Minutes of November 12, 2025
• Board Package*

Please note that if a party decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any 
matter considered at the above cited meeting, that party will need a record of the proceedings, 
and for such purpose, that party may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is 
made, which record includes that testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 

Enclosures 

 Copies of the Board Package are available through the Internet. Log on to www.wrwsa.org.
 On the Authority’s Home Page go to the left side of the page and click on “Meetings.”
 On the slide out menu is a button for the current Board Package.
 Click on the Board Package to download and/or print.

http://www.wrwsa.org/


[
GG490

A

II48

GG490

GG495

GG470

GG48
0

GG39A

GG486

GG488

II39

OO200

0098

0041

$$44

GG494

GG581

GG491

0098

GG480

!!44

!!44
!!44

GG490

GG581

II39

00980019

0141

GG491

..41

0019

Gulf of Mexico

H
e

rn
a

n
d

o
 C

o
u

n
ty

L
e

v
y

 C
o

u
n

ty

S
u

m
te

r 
C

o
u

n
ty

M
a

ri
o

n
 C

o
u

n
ty

±
Th

is
 i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

is
 t

o 
be

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
ge

ne
ra

l 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

nl
y.

  
Th

e 
C

itr
us

 C
ou

nt
y 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f 
G

.I.
S

. 
m

ak
es

 e
ve

ry
 e

ffo
rt 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 c

on
te

nt
 t

ha
t 

is
 a

cc
ur

at
e 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

e 
as

 o
f t

he
 d

at
e 

it 
is

 p
rin

te
d.

  
H

ow
ev

er
, a

ll 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 m

us
t b

e 
in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
ve

rif
ie

d
by

th
e

us
er

.  
 

C
itr

us
 C

ou
nt

y 
sh

al
l n

ot
 b

e 
lia

bl
e 

fo
r a

ny
 c

la
im

s,
 d

em
an

ds
, o

r l
os

se
s 

of
 a

ny
 k

in
d 

in
 

co
nn

ec
tio

n
w

ith
th

e
us

e
of

th
is

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

in
cl

ud
in

g
bu

tn
ot

lim
ite

d
to

,d
am

ag
es

 
or

lo
ss

es
ca

us
ed

by
re

lia
nc

e
up

on
th

e
ac

cu
ra

cy
or

tim
el

in
es

s
of

th
is

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

th
e 

vi
ew

in
g,

 c
op

yi
ng

, o
r d

is
tri

bu
tin

g 
of

 th
es

e 
m

at
er

ia
ls

.   

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 B
y 

: R
.W

. V
oa

k
D

at
e:

 J
an

ua
ry

 4
, 2

01
2

So
ur

ce
:  

En
te

rp
ris

e 
G

eo
da

ta
ba

se
3

0
3

6
1.5

Mi
les

Le
ca

nt
o 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t B

ui
ld

in
g

Lo
ca

to
r M

ap

O
ff

ic
e 

of
 G

eo
gr

ap
hi

c 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
S

ys
te

m
s

M
ap

 N
um

be
r: 

B
V

00
00

29Le
ca

nt
o 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t B

ui
ld

in
g

36
00

 W
. S

ov
er

ei
gn

 P
at

h
Le

ca
nt

o,
 F

lo
ri

da
 3

44
61



	
  
Driving	
  Directions	
  to	
  3600	
  W.	
  Sovereign	
  Path,	
  Lecanto	
  Government	
  Building	
  
	
  
From	
  Brooksville:	
  
• Go	
  North	
  on	
  N.	
  Main	
  St.	
  toward	
  S.	
  Broad	
  St./E.	
  Jefferson	
  St.	
  
• Take	
  the	
  1st	
  Left	
  onto	
  S.	
  Broad	
  St./W.	
  Jefferson	
  St.	
  
• Turn	
  Right	
  onto	
  US	
  98/Ponce	
  De	
  Leon	
  Blvd.	
  
• Turn	
  Right	
  onto	
  CR	
  491	
  toward	
  Lecanto	
  (about	
  13.5	
  miles)	
  
• Turn	
  Left	
  on	
  W.	
  Educational	
  Path	
  (traffic	
  signal)	
  
• Turn	
  right	
  at	
  the	
  Park	
  onto	
  W.	
  Sovereign	
  Path;	
  continue	
  to	
  the	
  right	
  to	
  the	
  

Lecanto	
  Government	
  Building	
  
	
  
From	
  Ocala	
  
• Go	
  southwest	
  on	
  SR	
  200	
  into	
  Citrus	
  County	
  
• Turn	
  Right	
  onto	
  CR	
  491	
  (stay	
  on	
  491	
  through	
  Beverly	
  Hills,	
  crossing	
  Hwy.	
  486	
  

and	
  SR	
  44)	
  
• Turn	
  Right	
  on	
  Saunders	
  Way	
  
• Turn	
  Left	
  onto	
  W.	
  Sovereign	
  Path;	
  follow	
  to	
  Lecanto	
  Government	
  Building	
  
	
  
From	
  Bushnell	
  
• In	
  Bushnell,	
  Go	
  West	
  on	
  FL-­‐48W	
  
• Turn	
  Right	
  onto	
  US	
  41;	
  continue	
  to	
  follow	
  US	
  41	
  N	
  
• Continue	
  straight	
  onto	
  FL	
  44	
  W/W	
  Main	
  St.;	
  continue	
  straight	
  on	
  SR	
  44	
  
• Turn	
  Left	
  onto	
  CR	
  491	
  
• Turn	
  Right	
  onto	
  Saunders	
  Way	
  
• Turn	
  Left	
  onto	
  W.	
  Sovereign	
  Path;	
  follow	
  to	
  Lecanto	
  Government	
  Building	
  
	
  
From	
  Wildwood	
  
• Go	
  West	
  on	
  SR	
  44W;	
  continue	
  on	
  SR	
  44	
  through	
  Inverness	
  
• Turn	
  Left	
  onto	
  CR	
  491	
  
• Turn	
  Right	
  onto	
  Saunders	
  Way	
  
• Turn	
  Left	
  onto	
  W.	
  Sovereign	
  Path;	
  follow	
  to	
  Lecanto	
  Government	
  Building.	
   	
  
	
  

LGB 

	
  





WITHLACOOCHEE REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

A G E N D A 
January 14, 2026 -- 3:30 p.m. 

LECANTO GOVERNMENT BUILDING -- ROOM 166 
3600 W. Sovereign Path, Lecanto, Florida 34461 

At the discretion of the Board, items may be taken out of order to accommodate the needs of the Board and the public. 

PAGE 
1. Call to Order . . . Jerry Campbell, Chair

2. Pledge of Allegiance . . . Led by the Board

3. Roll Call . . . Suzy Folsom, WRWSA Executive Director

4. Additions/Deletions to the Agenda . . . Suzy Folsom, WRWSA

5. Public Comment

6. Consent Agenda . . . Jerry Campbell, Chair
a. Approval of Minutes [approve November 12, 2025 minutes]  .........................................................................     9 
b. Bills to be Paid [ratify December bills; approve January bills provided at the meeting]  ......................................   15 

7. Election of Officers . . . Board Members  ...........................................................................................................   17 

8. Charles A. Black Wellfield Renewal and Replacement Fund Annual Report . . . Suzy Folsom, WRWSA .........   25 

9. Regional Water Supply Plan – Draft Report . . . Lisa Krentz, Hazen and Sawyer  ..............................................   29 

10. Legislative Reports . . . Suzy Folsom, WRWSA ...................................................................................................   31 

11. Attorney’s Report . . . Rob Batsel, WRWSA Attorney  ........................................................................................   37 

12. Executive Director’s Report . . . Suzy Folsom, WRWSA
a. Water Use Permit Demand Summary  ......................................................................................................     39 
b. Water Management Information System Water Use Permit Notifications –

Sugarmill Woods Water Use Permit Renewal  .........................................................................................  41 
c. Residential Irrigation Evaluation Programs Update  ................................................................................     43 
d. Correspondence  ........................................................................................................................................     45 
e. News Articles  .............................................................................................................................................    83 
f. Other

13. Other Business

14. Next Meeting . . . March 18, 2026; 3:30 p.m.; Lecanto Government Building, Room 166

15. Adjournment

Please note that if a party decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at the above 
cited meeting, that party will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose, that party may need to ensure that a verbatim 
record of the proceedings is made, which record includes that testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 





Item 6.a. 
 

Consent Agenda 
 

Approval of  
Minutes 

 
 

 
 

- 9 -



D R A F T  
WITHLACOOCHEE REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

Minutes of the Meeting 
November 12, 2025 

 
 
TIME: 3:31 p.m. 
PLACE: Lecanto Government Building  
ADDRESS: 3600 W. Sovereign Path, Room 280, Lecanto, Florida 34461 
 
The numbers preceding the items listed below correspond with the published agenda. 
 
1. Call to Order 

 As the most senior member of Board members present, Chair Campbell called the Withlacoochee 
Regional Water Supply Authority (WRWSA) Board of Directors meeting to order at 3:31 p.m.     

 
2.  Pledge of Allegiance – Chair Campbell led those present in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. Roll Call – Chair Campbell requested each member present introduce themselves.  He noted a quorum 

was present.  
  
BOARD MEMBER PRESENT 
Jerry Campbell, Chair, Hernando Commissioner 
Don Wiley, Vice Chair, Sumter County Commissioner 
Marcos Flores, Treasurer, Wildwood Councilor 
Janet Barak, Citrus County Commissioner  
Robert Holmes, Crystal River City Councilor 
Michelle Stone, Marion County Commissioner 
 
BOARD ALTERNATE(S) PRESENT -- None 

BOARD MEMBER(S) ABSENT 
Ryan Amsler, Hernando County Commissioner  
Todd Coon, Sumter County Commissioner 
Thomas Bronson, Brooksville City Councilor 
Kathy Bryant, Marion County Commissioner 
Robert “Bo” Smith, Belleview Commissioner 
Jeff Kinnard, Citrus Co Commissioner  
Carl Zalak, Marion County Commissioner 

  
WRWSA STAFF PRESENT 
Suzannah J. Folsom, PE, PMP, Executive Dir 
James Hartley, General Counsel Assistant 
LuAnne Stout, Administrative Asst. 
 
WRWSA STAFF ABSENT  
Robert W. Batsel, Jr., General Counsel  

OTHERS PRESENT 
Carrieann Adkins, SWFWMD Govt Affairs Reg Mgr 
Alys Brockway, Hernando Co Water Resource Mgr 
Debra Burden, Citrus Co Water Conservation Mgr 
Trevor Knight, Marion Co Water Res Liaison  
Lisa Krentz, Hazen and Sawyer 
Paige TaraCruz, SWFWMD Environmental Prj Mgr 

 
4. Additions/Deletions to the Agenda – Mrs. Folsom said there are no additions or deletions to the 

agenda.  
 
5. Public Comment – There being no members of the audience requesting to address the Board, 

Ms. Stone closed public comment. 
 
6. Consent Agenda  

a. Approval of Minutes [approve September 17, 2025 minutes]  
b. Bills to be Paid [ratified October bills; approve November bills provided at the meeting]  
c. Quarterly Financial Report [accept October 2024 through June 2025 report]  
d. Marion County Run for the Springs 5K [approve $500 sponsorship for February 28, 2026 event] 
  
Mr. Wiley moved, seconded by Ms. Barek, to approve Consent Agenda Items 6.a., 6.b., 6.c., and 
6.d., as presented.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

7. Resolution 2025-05 Adoption of Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2025-2026  
Ms. Suzannah Folsom, WRWSA Executive Director, presented this item.  Included as Exhibit A to 
this item is the proposed FY 2025-26 budget.  This budget has been prepared in a conservative 
manner to keep costs in check and enhance efficiencies for member governments.  Included as 

- 10 -



Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority    November 12, 2025 
Minutes of the Meeting  Page 2 of 4 
 
 

Exhibit B is a description of the Authority’s FY 2025-26 work program that is supported by the 
proposed budget.  Exhibits included in the Board’s meeting materials were as follows:  A. Proposed 
FY 2025-26 Budget; B. WRWSA FY 2025-26 Work Program; and C. Resolution 2025-05, Adoption 
of Final Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Budget. 

 
Each County was represented by an elected Commissioner to create a quorum for approval of 
this item.  Ms. Stone moved, seconded by Ms. Barak, to approve Resolution 2025-05 adopting 
the FY 2025-2026 budget including anticipated revenues of $523,068, expenditures in the 
amount of $510,361, budgeted reserves in the amount of $2,498,305, as presented in Exhibit A, 
for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2025 and ending September 30, 2026. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
8. Minimum Flows and Levels – Priority Lists and Schedules s 

Ms. Folsom, Executive Director, presented this item.  The purpose of this item is to provide a status 
report to the Board of the establishment of minimum flows and levels (MFLs) in the Authority’s four-
county area. 
 
Chapter 373, Florida Statutes, requires each of the water management districts to have a Priority List 
and Schedule for the establishment of MFLs. The Priority List and Schedule identifies water bodies 
for which the District plans to establish minimum flows and levels and also identifies planned water 
reservations.   Minimum flows and levels are limits set by the District Governing Board for surface 
waters and groundwater systems that are intended to prevent significant harm to the water resources 
or ecology of the area that may be caused by water withdrawals. Reservations set aside water from 
withdrawals for the protection of fish and wildlife or public health and safety. 
 
The Districts are required to update this List and Schedule each year and provide the updated List to 
the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) by November 15th. 
 
Included as exhibits to this item are the MFLs that have been established to-date, and the proposed 
Priority Lists and Schedules for waterbodies within the WRWSA four-county area that are to be 
approved by the District Governing Boards for submittal to the DEP in November. A GIS map of the 
MFL locations and the current status of the MFL are provided by the DEP Office of Water Policy at: 
https://fdep.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=dff89179a4994477a70e6ed3dfc16647 
 
The Water Management Districts will use these MFLs to assess the health of the environment and 
will limit the issuance of future water supply permits based on monitoring these locations. 
 
All MFLs are currently being met except for the Silver Spring MFL, which is listed as “Prevention” 
which means that the SJRWMD has a Prevention Strategy in place to bring it back to “Meeting” the 
MFL. This strategy includes conservation, aquifer recharge with the Ocala wetland aquifer recharge 
park, relocating supply to the lower Floridan aquifer, and increasing use of reclaimed for irrigation.  
 
The most relevant upcoming MFLs to be set will be four locations along the Withlacoochee River, 
which are scheduled in 2026. The Withlacoochee River has been identified as a potential alternative 
water supply source for the region, but the potential quantities that could be available cannot be 
determined until the minimum flows are set. WRWSA will continue to monitor and report on efforts 
to set these MFLs. 
 
Staff is also tracking the reevaluation of Lake Weir and Gum Slough Springs Group as the new levels 
may affect permit applicants in their vicinity.   
 
Mr. Holmes asked that the maps include well locations and amount pumped yearly.  Ms. Folsom 
noted that, at the Board’s request, staff can provide further information. She said that public hearings 
are scheduled for several MFLs. 
 
This item was provided for the Board’s information and no action was required. 
 

- 11 -



Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority    November 12, 2025 
Minutes of the Meeting  Page 3 of 4 
 
 
9. Regional Water Supply Plan  

Ms. Lisa Krentz representing Hazen and Sawyer provided an update on the project status a summary 
of the future water supply modeling that Hazen and Sawyer has completed.  The Authority entered 
into a cooperative funding agreement with the Southwest Florida Water Management District 
(SWFWMD) in December 2022 (23CF0004079) for Regional Water Supply Plan Update project.  
The Authority entered into a contract with Hazen and Sawyer in January 2023 to undertake the 
project.  With the assistance of the SWFWMD, St. Johns River Water Management District, and a 
Technical Advisory Committee comprised of representatives from member governments and public 
supply utilities in the four-county region, the Plan Update is being coordinated.  
 
This project is behind schedule due to some delays in the availability of the Central Springs Model. 
The draft report is now available for review. The revised project schedule is shown below, as per the 
last received invoice in September. This project is scheduled to be complete in December. 
 
Using a PowerPoint presentation, Ms. Krentz provided an overview of current findings to date and 
prioritization of projects (near term, mid-term and long term).  She reviewed the integrated reuse, 
recharge, and regional source strategy for the project. 
 
Mr. Wiley inquired about a test injection well in Sumter County near the landfill.  Ms. Krentz said she 
will check into that proposal. 
 
Regarding project completion by end of the year, Ms. Folsom noted that SJRWMD has requested 
time to review the draft report and an extension will be required for completing the final report. 
 
This item was provided for the Board’s information and no action was required. 

 
10. Irrigation Audit Program Phase 7 – Review of Draft Report  

Ms. Folsom, WRWSA Executive Director, presented this item.  Phase 7 of the Authority’s Regional 
Irrigation System Evaluation Program began in December 2022 as part of the Authority’s ongoing 
water conservation initiative. Phase 7 of the Irrigation Audit Program was funded by and completed 
in cooperation with the Southwest Florida Water Management District (SWFWMD), Citrus, 
Hernando, and Marion counties and the North Sumter County Utility Dependent District (NSCUDD) 
and the Villages Community Center Development District (VCCDD).  
 
The draft report details the number of evaluations completed, the estimated water saved, and the cost 
effectiveness of this phase of the program. Phase 7 is on time and within budget however the targeted 
number of evaluations were not achieved. A summary of the major findings of the Phase 7 effort will 
be presented at the meeting. The Phase 7 draft report is provided as an exhibit for review and 
comment. It has also been provided to the cooperating utilities and SWFWMD for review.  As an 
exhibit to this item, the draft report was provided at the meeting. 
 
Mr. Wiley moved, seconded by Ms. Stone, to authorize staff to incorporate comments on this 
draft report into a final report and submit it to SWFWMD by December 31, 2025.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
11. Legislative Reports 

Ms. Folsom, WRWSA Executive Director, presented this item.  The 2025 Legislative Regular 
Session began on March 4, 2025 and ran for two extended periods ending June 16, 2025. Staff has 
gathered updated information on relevant bills that are related to conservation and water supply from 
SWFWMD, 1000 Friends of Florida, and the Florida Engineering Society’s legislative tracking, and 
the House and Senate websites. 
 
A summary of the bills that WRWSA staff tracked that passed during the session is provided as an 
Exhibit to this item. A more detailed presentation on the SB 1300 / HB 1143 Permits for Drilling, 
Exploration, and Extraction of Oil and Gas Resources was provided by Ms. Folsom. 

- 12 -



Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority    November 12, 2025 
Minutes of the Meeting  Page 4 of 4 
 
 

The 2026 Legislative Regular Session will begin January 13, 2026.  The dates and times for the 
Legislative delegations are listed below: 
 

Hernando County December 15, 2025 1 pm Hernando County Commission Chamber 
Marion County October 1, 2025 1 pm College of Central Florida’s Klein Center 
Sumter County TBD  TBD 

 
This item was provided for the Board’s information and no action was required. 

 
12. Attorney’s Report 

a. Discussion on Reduced Property Taxes  
 Mr. Hartley, Assistant General Counsel, reported that nothing official has been filed and a 

number of options are being reviewed that would change how governments do business.  He 
noted that the county per capita assessments may require changes accordingly. 

b. Legal Notice Requirements  
 Mr. Hartley, Assistant General Counsel, reported that for governments it saves money.  For the 

Authority to only post on its website, each county website would have to adhere to the status and 
coordinate postings with the Authority.  Ms. Barek said she preferred noticing in newspapers.  
Mr. Wiley agreed with Ms. Barek and noted that most people do not look at websites.  Chair 
Campbell said he also agrees and, until all counties are posting their websites, the Authority 
should continue posting in local newspapers. 

 
13. Executive Director’s Report – Ms. Folsom said she met with other Water Supply Authority 

Executive Directors and among items of discussion were ability to use reverse auction procurement 
process to reduce costs, asset management, and alternative water supplies.  She presented the 
following items which required no action and highlighted items which had activity since last Board 
meeting.   
a. Water Use Permit Demand Summary – A summary was in the Board’s meeting materials.  
b. Water Use Permit Activity Report (WMIS Notifications) – A list of notifications was included 

in the Board’s meeting materials.  
c. Residential Irrigation Evaluation Programs Update – Ms. Folsom noted that Phase 8a (WISE) 

will merge into Phase 8b.   
d. Correspondence – Item(s) were included in the meeting materials. A future presentation will be 

provided on the SWIM Priority List. 
e. News Articles – Article(s) were included in the meeting materials.  
f. Other -- None 
 

14. Other Business 
 Board members discussed issues regarding disposal of railroad ties in Dunnellon and their 

contaminants, and a borrow pit for the Suncoast Extension. 
 Ms. Folsom said she will be scheduling meetings with stakeholders, including each Board 

member regarding the Regional Water Supply Plan. 
 
15. Next Meeting Time and Location 
 The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for January 14, 2026, at 3:30 p.m. at the Lecanto 

Government Building, Room 166. 
 The Board thanked Citrus County for hosting meetings and the new chairs at the dais. 

 
16. Adjournment – Chair Campbell adjourned the meeting at 4:52 p.m. 
 
 

________________________________________ 
Jerry Campbell, Chair 

 
 

________________________________________ 
Suzannah J. Folsom, Executive Director 
 - 13 -



- 14 -



Item 6.b. 
 

Consent Agenda 
 

Bills to be Paid 
 
 

  
October bills in the meeting materials; 

November bills to be provided at meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 

- 15 -



   
Invoice Invoice

Number(s) Date Amount

Suzannah J. Folsom, PE, Executive Director 1464 11/30/2025 $8,745.60
Rob Batsel, General Counsel 165038 11/30/2025 $2,021.00
C. LuAnne Stout, Admin Asst (Admin Services) 11-Nov-2025 12/2/2025 $3,624.00
Don Wiley (Nov Bd Travel) 11/12/2025 $27.59
Marcos Flores (Nov Bd Travel) 11/12/2025 $35.16
Nature Coast Web Design & Marketing (Contract/Monthly) 19446 12/1/2025 $200.00
FL Dept of State FAR (Yearly Mtg Dates) 161380 11/17/2025 $38.50
Ganne FL LocaliQ (Ocala Star-Banner Yearly Mtg Dates) 522480 10/31/2025 $139.86
Truist Bank Business Card Statement 12/2/2025 12/2/2025 $265.26

$15,096.97
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

Contract/ Balance Current
Water Supply Studies and Facilities Budget Remaining  

2025 General Services Contract $20,000.00
Work Order 2025-01 CHA $10,000.00 $10,000.00
Work Order 2025-02 Stantec (fka Cardno) $10,000.00 $10,000.00

FY24-25 Water Conservation Grants Program $180,000.00 $180,000.00
Citrus County $47,000.00 $9,452.35 $37,547.65 (1)
Hernando County $46,250.00 $46,250.00
Marion County $13,327.50 $253.82
Sumter County $73,512.50 $0.00 $73,512.50 (2)

Regional Water Supply Plan Update (Q324) $350,000.00 $17,454.60
SJRWMD Irrigation Audits (East I-75) $60,000.00 $40,224.25
Phase 7 Irrigation Program (Q306) $102,000.00 $34,470.95
Phase 8 WISE Irrigation Program $36,540.00 $9,649.50 $620.50 (3)
FY24-25 Total Project Invoices $748,540.00 $168,105.97 $111,680.65

Total Bills to be Paid $126,777.62

State Board of Administration Transfer from SBA2 to SBA1 $15,096.97
State Board of Administration $126,777.62
Truist Bank Deposit $126,777.62

(1) Citrus Co - FY2024-25 Local Govt Grants $37,547.65     Inv WCL-2025-06
(2) Sumter Co - FY2024-25 Local Govt Grants $73,512.50     Inv Reimbursement 2024-25
(3) Phase 8 (WISE) - Irrigation Audits 

Jack Overdorff, ECO Land Design  $570.50     Invoice 887
C. LuAnne Stout, Admin Services  $50.00     Invoice 11-Nov-Ph8 WISE-2025

$620.50

Notes:

Transfer from SBA1 to Truist Bank
Transferred from SBA1

Total Administrative Invoices

Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority
3600 W. Sovereign Path, Suite 228, Lecanto, Florida 34461

Bills For Payment
12/17/2025

Administrative Invoices

- 16 -



 
Item 7 

 
Election of Board Officers 
 
The Board of the WRWSA annually elects its Board officers, including a Chair, Vice Chair and 
Treasurer at its January meeting. The Executive Director is the Board Secretary who serves in 
an ex-officio capacity. Pursuant to the Election of Officers Policy, included as an exhibit to this 
item, the Board may entertain nominations for individual officers or a slate of officers.  
 
For this election the existing Board Officers can serve two consecutive terms in the same office, 
move up to the next office (i.e. treasurer to vice chair and vice chair to chair), or choose to 
vacate their position. The office of Treasurer is customarily filled by a Board member from the 
County without a representative as an officer in the current slate of officers. This practice is 
informal, and circumstances may warrant nominations and elections to deviate from this 
practice. Also, pursuant to the Board Policy, the current Chair will chair the complete January 
meeting. The new officers will take their respective seats 24 hours before the next Board 
meeting. 
 
The existing officers are as follows: 
 

Chair:         Jerry Campbell – Hernando County Commissioner 
Vice Chair: Don Wiley – Sumter County Commissioner 
Treasurer:  Marcos Flores – Wildwood City Commissioner 

 
The existing officers could remain in their current positions for the second one year term, or 
if Commissioner Campbell decides to rotate off as Chair, the natural succession would have 
Commissioner Wiley move into the Chair position, Commissioner Flores would move up to 
the Vice Chair position, and a Marion County Commissioner would be nominated to be in the 
Treasurer Position. 
 
The next officer election will be scheduled in January 2027. 
 

SECTION VIII. – Officers: The officers of the Governing Board shall be as follows: 
1. A Chairman, who shall preside at meetings of the Governing Board; sign, as 

authorized by the Governing Board, any contracts or other instruments which 
are deemed to be in the best interest of the Authority; and perform such other 
duties incident to the office as may be prescribed by the Governing Board. 

2. A Vice Chairman, who shall act in the Chairman’s absence. The Vice 
Chairman shall perform such other functions as the Governing Board may 
from time to time assign. 

3. A Treasurer, who shall be entrusted with the receipt, care and disbursement 
of Authority funds in accordance with fiscal policies and regulations adopted 
by the Governing Board. 

4. If none of the above officers are present at a Board meeting where there is 
otherwise a quorum, the Authority Board may elect a chairman pro-tem for 
the duration of the meeting. 

 
See Exhibits 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
Board election of officers. 

- 17 -



- 18 -



- 19 -



- 20 -



- 21 -



- 22 -



- 23 -



- 24 -



Item 8 
Charles A. Black Wellfield – Renewal and Replacement Fund Annual Report 

Mrs. Suzannah Folsom, WRWSA Executive Director, will present this item. 

Citrus County has submitted to the Authority the annual report for the Charles A. Black (CAB) 
Wellfield Renewal and Replacement (R&R) Fund, documenting deposits and expenditures for 
the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025, which is included as an exhibit to this item.     

This annual report is required by the Water Supply Contract between the WRWSA and Citrus 
County.  Staff has reviewed this report, and has found that the report is consistent with the 
pertinent Contract requirements, which state in part: 

R&R Reserve Fund Reporting – The County shall provide to the Authority an annual report on 
contributions to and utilization of the R&R Reserve Fund, describing the date and amount of 
contributions to the Fund, interest earnings in the Fund; and the date, amount, and description 
of expenditures from the fund, including the purpose of the capital facility replacement, renewal 
or major repair.  This annual report shall be for the prior Contract Year and shall be provided 
no later than January 31st in the following Contract Year. 

The R&R Fund was credited with $270,000 in deposits from Citrus County and $106,126.23 
in interest revenue. Expenditures totaled $247,689.19. The R&R Fund balance increased from 
$2,654,154.47 to $2,782,591.51. 

See Exhibit 

Staff Recommendation:  

Board acceptance of Citrus County’s annual report for the CAB R&R Fund, documenting 
expenditures and deposits for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025. 

- 25 -



December 7, 2025 

Ms. Suzannah Folsom 
Withlacoochee River Water Supply Authority 
3600 West Sovereign Path – Suite 228 
Lecanto, Florida 34461  

Dear Ms. Folsom: 

Enclosed is a listing of the interest revenue and transfers to as well as expenditures Citrus 
County made from the renewal and replacement fund for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2025.  These expenditures were allowed by the Water Supply Contract between 
Withlacoochee Water Supply Authority and Citrus County, Florida, dated October 12, 2016.  
This information is provided so that your records may accurately reflect the change in the 
amount of this fund.  The following is a summary of the transactions in the renewal and 
replacement fund: 

Beginning Balance 10/1/2024 $2,654,154.47 
Deposit 270,000.00
Interest Revenue 106,126.23 
Less: Expenses (247,689.19)

Ending Balance 9/30/2025 $2,782,591.51

A detailed report of the above activity is attached along with copies of the individual invoices.  
If you have any questions regarding these transactions, please call me at 352-341-6464.  

Sincerely, 

Susan Sullivan, CPA 
Chief Financial Officer 

Enclosures 

Cc via e-mail:  Steve Howard, County Administrator  
 Ken Cheek, Water Resources Director 

TRACI PERRY 
EX-OFFICIO CLERK  

TO THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
Citrus County, Florida 

              __________________________________________ 

110 North Apopka Avenue, Inverness, FL  34450 
(352) 341-6424  Fax (352) 341-6458 

Finance@citrusclerk.org

- 26 -



Beginning Balance 2,654,154.47$ 

Transfers In

10/07/24 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

11/08/24 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

12/06/24 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

01/08/25 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

02/07/25 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

03/07/25 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

04/08/25 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

05/08/25 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

06/06/25 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

07/09/25 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

08/08/25 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

09/08/25 Contractual transfers 22,500.00 270,000.00

Interest Earnings

11/01/24 Monthly interest earnings 10,696.04

12/01/24 Monthly interest earnings 7,143.29

01/01/25 Monthly interest earnings 8,400.86

02/01/25 Monthly interest earnings 9,683.52

03/01/25 Monthly interest earnings 8,155.17

04/01/25 Monthly interest earnings 8,769.54

05/01/25 Monthly interest earnings 8,550.98

06/01/25 Monthly interest earnings 9,287.25

07/01/25 Monthly interest earnings 8,805.06

08/01/25 Monthly interest earnings 9,183.46

09/01/25 Monthly interest earnings 9,022.60

09/30/25 Monthly interest earnings 8,428.46 106,126.23

Repair & Maintenance

12/09/24 Citrus Well Drilling 218,345.00

08/04/25 In Universal Controls Inc 2,934.75

10/24/25 John Mader Enterprises 15,724.00

06/11/25 Pasco Pipe Supply 4,257.00

06/16/25 Grainger 2,522.80

06/16/25 Grainger 2,182.92

09/05/25 Avanti Company 645.72

09/05/25 Avanti Company 1,077.00 (247,689.19)

Ending Balance 2,782,591.51$ 

Detail of Transactions

- 27 -



- 28 -



Item 9 
Regional Water Supply Plan – Draft Report 

Lisa Krentz, Hazen and Sawyer Project Manager, will present the draft report for this project. 

The Authority entered into a cooperative funding agreement with the Southwest Florida Water 
Management District (SWFWMD) in December 2022 (23CF0004079) for Regional Water Supply 
Plan Update project.  The Authority entered into a contract with Hazen and Sawyer in January 
2023 to undertake the project.   

With the assistance of the SWFWMD, St. Johns River Water Management District, and a 
Technical Advisory Committee comprised of representatives from member governments and 
public supply utilities in the four-county region, the Plan Update is being coordinated.  

This project is behind schedule due to some delays in the availability of the Central Springs 
Model. The draft report is now available for review. The revised project schedule is shown 
below, as per the last received invoice in December. 

Task Summary 

Task Description Schedule % Complete 

1 
Project Management and Stakeholder 
Engagement February 2023 – November 2025 98% 

2 Data Collection and Processing February 2023 – January 2024 Complete 

3 Population and Demand Estimates February 2023 – June 2024 Complete 

4 Water Conservation and Reuse Evaluation February 2023 – November 2024 Complete 

5 Water Sources Evaluation April 2024 – September 2025 Complete 

6 Water Supply Project Options October 2024 – September 2025 Complete 

7 Recommendations December 2024 – September 2025 95% 

8 Draft and Final Report February 2025 – March 2026 80% 

This project budget is 97% expended. A summary of the billing and SWFWMD reimbursement 
received to date is provided below. 

Project Billing Summary 

Hazen and Sawyer 
Contract Amount Billed To Date Remaining SWFWMD 

Reimbursement Received 

$350,000.00 $339,942.40 $10,057.60 $126,989.43 

Staff Recommendation: 

This item is for the Board’s information. Comments on the draft report will be accepted until the 
end of January.  The report will be finalized in February.  

- 29 -



- 30 -



Item 10 

Legislative Report 
 

Ms. Suzannah Folsom, Executive Director, will present this item. 
 
The 2025 Legislative Regular Session began on March 4, 2025 and ran for two extended 
periods ending June 16, 2025. Staff have gathered updated information on relevant bills that 
are related to conservation and water supply from SWFWMD, 1000 Friends of Florida, and the 
Florida Engineering Society’s legislative tracking, and the House and Senate websites. 
 
A summary of the bills that WRWSA staff tracked that passed during the session is provided as 
an Exhibit to this item. A more detailed presentation on the SB 1300 / HB 1143 Permits for 
Drilling, Exploration, and Extraction of Oil and Gas Resources will be given. 
 
Presentations on other bills that passed during the 2025 session will follow at subsequent 
WRWSA Board meetings. Please let us know if there are any preferences for future topics. 
 
The 2026 Legislative Regular Session will begin January 13, 2026.  The dates and times for 
the Legislative delegations are listed below: 
 

Marion County October 1, 2025 1 pm College of Central Florida’s Klein Center 
Citrus County October 31, 2025 9 am Citrus County Commission Chambers 
Hernando County December 15, 2025 1 pm Hernando County Commission Chamber 

 
Exhibit:  Bill Tracking 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
This is an information item, no action is required.  
 
 
 

 

- 31 -



1 
 

WRWSA Summary of Florida State Legislative Issues for Tracking         Updated Dec 30, 2025 

Bill Title Significance Bill Sponsors Status 
Florida Public 
Service 
Commission  

• Revising the membership of the Florida Public Service Commission;  
• requiring a group of parties to certain proceedings to negotiate the 

terms of a settlement with the Public Counsel before presenting 
such settlement to the commission;  

• requiring that orders issued by the commission contain adequate 
support and rationale for any conclusions made by the commission;  

• authorizing certain persons to make a motion to intervene in a 
pending commission proceeding;  

• authorizing the commission to fix affordable, in addition to fair, just, 
and reasonable, rates 

SB 126 Gaetz, 
Bradley 

12/11/2025 
Appropriations 
Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, 
and General Government 

HB 187 Andrade 
Campbell, 
Tendrich, 
Young 

10/21/2025 Economic 
Infrastructure 
subcommittee 

Special 
District 
Funding 

• Revising agency agreements that provide state financial assistance 
to recipients or subrecipients to include certain special districts as 
an entity to which such agency may provide for the payment of 
invoices under specified circumstances 

• revising the definition of “rural community” to include certain special 
districts 

SB214 McClain 11/3/2025 Referred to 
Commerce and Tourism, 
Appropriations 
Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism 
and Economic 
Development; Fiscal 
Policy 

HB 273 Johnson 11/4/2025 
Intergovernmental Affairs  

Blue Ribbon 
Projects 

• Requires that development project meet certain requirements to 
qualify as blue ribbon project: >10,000 acres, 60% set aside  

• requires that blue ribbon project have blue ribbon plan; requires that 
project receive dollar-for-dollar credits from local government; 
specifies that project may be located on land with any future land 
use designation or zoning designation;  

• prohibits required amendment of comprehensive plan or required 
rezoning for approval of project; authorizes landowner to apply to 
local government for approval of project;  

• requires applicant to record plan for approved project in public 
records of county in which project property is located;  

• authorizes applicant to appeal denial of project application to 
Department of Commerce; authorizes person whose substantial 
interests are or may be affected by approval of project to file petition 
with Department of Commerce. 

SB 354 McClain 11/17/2025 Community 
Affairs; Appropriations 
Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, 
and Economic 
Development; Rules   

HB 299 Melo 12/16/2025 Commerce 
Committee 

- 32 -

https://www.flsenate.gov/Session/Bill/2026/126
https://www.flhouse.gov/Sections/Bills/billsdetail.aspx?BillId=82714&
https://www.flsenate.gov/Session/Bill/2026/214
https://www.flhouse.gov/Sections/Bills/billsdetail.aspx?BillId=82812&SessionId=113


2 
 

Bill Title Significance Bill Sponsors Status 
Landscape 
Irrigation 

• Creating the “Landscape Irrigation Standards and Watering 
Restrictions Act” 

• prohibiting a person from taking certain actions regarding a 
landscape irrigation system unless such person is a licensed 
irrigation contractor or the property owner 

• specifying that only a licensed irrigation contractor may connect an 
irrigation system to a water supply 

• providing a purpose for landscape irrigation system standards 
• creating a landscape irrigation watering schedule 
• providing for the enforcement of the act 

SB 508 Truenow 12/1/225 Regulated 
Industries Appropriations 
Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, 
and General 
Government; Rules 

HB 611 Cobb 12/12/2025 Natural 
Resources & Disasters 
Subcommittee 

Conservation 
Lands 

• Requires Division of State Lands to publish certain information on 
its website before Board of Trustees of Internal Improvement Trust 
Fund meets to review proposed sale of conservation lands;  

• requires that certain parcels proposed for exchange be appraised in 
accordance with certain criteria;  

• removes provisions requiring division to submit certain requests to 
Acquisition & Restoration Council for review;  

• removes provisions requiring division to provide certain 
recommendations to board;  

• requires division to publish certain information on its website before 
council meets to review proposed land exchange;  

• requires division to submit certain requests to council for review & 
requiring council to provide recommendations to division in certain 
circumstances;  

• requires division to provide certain recommendations to board of 
trustees in certain circumstances;  

• requires governing board of water management district to publish 
certain information on its website before meeting to review 
proposed sale or exchange of certain lands. 

SB 546 Mayfield 12/9/2025 Environment 
and Natural Resources; 
Appropriations 
Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, 
and General 
Government; Rules 

HB 441 Kendall 
Tant 
Benarroch 
Black 
Campbell 
Eskamani 
Gosset-
Seidman 
Tenrich 
Weinberger 

11/24/2025 Natural 
Resources & Disasters 
Subcommittee 

- 33 -

https://www.flsenate.gov/Session/Bill/2026/508
https://www.flhouse.gov/Sections/Bills/billsdetail.aspx?BillId=83216&SessionId=113
https://www.flsenate.gov/Session/Bill/2026/546
https://www.flhouse.gov/Sections/Bills/billsdetail.aspx?BillId=83037&SessionId=113


3 
 

Bill Title Significance Bill Sponsors Status 
Standards for 
Storm Water 
Systems 

• Requiring storm water systems in counties and municipalities, 
respectively, to comply with specified Department of Transportation 
standards;  

• providing inspection requirements for such systems;  
• specifying that certain local standards are superseded, etc. 

SB 558 Burgess 12/9/2025 Environment 
and Natural Resources, 
Community Affairs 

HB 239 Grow 10/28/2025 
Intergovernmental Affairs 

Land and 
Water 
Management 

• Prohibits counties & municipalities from adopting laws, regulations, 
rules, or policies relating to water quality or quantity, pollution 
control, discharge prevention or removal, or wetlands & preempts 
such regulation to the state 

• requires DEP to notify CFO of certain violations 
• requires CFO to withhold certain funds 
• repeals provisions relating to land management review teams. 

SB 718 McClain 12/16 Multiple 
Committees 

HB 479 Maggard 11/24/2025 Natural 
Resources and Disasters 
Subcommittee 

Public 
Officers and 
Employees or 
Governmental 
Agencies and 
Personnel 

• Requiring that, beginning on a specified date, secretaries and 
executive directors of departments, chief administrative officers of 
certain units of state government, members of commissions and 
licensing boards, chairs of governing boards or certain chief 
executives of certain statewide entities, or any persons appointed to 
hold state office in the executive branch of state government be 
United States citizens and residents of this state; providing that 
such an office is automatically deemed vacant if the person holding 
that office does not meet certain requirements; requiring the 
Commission on Ethics to investigate certain lobbyists or principals 
who make prohibited expenditures, etc. 

SB 802 Mayfield 12/16/2025  Referred to 
Governmental Oversight 
and Accountability; 
Appropriations 
Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, 
and General 
Government; Rules 

HB 593 Conerly 12/12/2025 Government 
Operations 
Subcommittee 

- 34 -

https://www.flsenate.gov/Session/Bill/2026/558
https://www.flhouse.gov/Sections/Bills/billsdetail.aspx?BillId=82766&SessionId=113
https://www.flsenate.gov/Session/Bill/2026/718
https://www.flhouse.gov/Sections/Bills/billsdetail.aspx?BillId=83072&SessionId=113
https://www.flsenate.gov/Session/Bill/2026/802/?Tab=RelatedBills
https://www.flhouse.gov/Sections/Bills/billsdetail.aspx?BillId=83203&SessionId=113


4 
 

Bill Title Significance Bill Sponsors Status 
Stormwater 
Treatment 

• Defining the terms “compensating stormwater treatment” and “total 
land area”; requiring compensating stormwater treatment to comply 
with certain provisions unless certain circumstances exist;  

• explaining the types of mitigation measures for compensating 
stormwater treatment that the Department of Environmental 
Protection or a water management district governing board must 
consider under certain circumstances;  

• authorizing mitigation measures or enhancement credits intended to 
address certain impacts to be generated by certain entities and sold 
only to certain environmental resource permit applicants, etc. 

 
 
 
 

SB 848 Truenow 12/16/2025 Environment 
and Natural Resources; 
Community Affairs; Rules 

HB 
TBD 

  

Special 
Districts 

• Abolishes certain soil & water conservation districts;  
• transfers assets & liabilities of such districts to DACS;  
• provides that independent special district that grants public access 

to district lands or water areas for outdoor recreational purposes 
owes no duty of care to perform specified actions;  

• provides that independent special district is not responsible for 
injury to persons or property caused by act or omission of such 
person upon such lands or water areas;  

• provides certain protection to owner of private land if independent 
special district secures easement or other access right through such 
private land to district lands or water areas that independent special 
district makes available to public for outdoor recreational purposes;  

• provides that special district may purchase commodities & 
contractual services from purchasing agreements of this state;  

• provides that independent special district may require, by resolution, 
criminal history screening for certain persons;  

• revises qualifications of supervisor of soil & water conservation 
district;  

• requires DACS to monitor specified soil & water conservation 
districts & ensure that each district is winding up administrative & 
fiscal matters in timely manner & using certain practices. 

SB 
TBD 

  

HB 123 Overdorf 10/14/25 
Intergovernmental Affairs 

  

- 35 -

https://www.flsenate.gov/Session/Bill/2026/848
https://www.flhouse.gov/Sections/Bills/billsdetail.aspx?BillId=82647&SessionId=113


5 
 

Bill Title Significance Bill Sponsors Status 
Water 
Management 
Districts 

• Requires Commission on Ethics to investigate lobbyist or principal 
who has made prohibited expenditure & to provide Governor with 
report of its findings & recommendations regarding such 
investigation;  

• prohibits certain persons from making or accepting expenditures;  
• requires South Florida Water Management District, in cooperation 

with DEP, to provide detailed report that includes total estimated 
remaining cost of implementation of Comprehensive Everglades 
Restoration Plan & status of applicable performance indicators for 
all project components;  

• requires South Florida Ecosystem Restoration Task Force to 
identify certain sources of funding; authorizes water management 
districts to levy certain ad valorem taxes on specified property for 
certain purposes;  

• requires district governing board levying ad valorem taxes for 
certain projects to adopt resolution approved by majority vote of 
voting electors in district or basin;  

• requires that water management district's tentative budget for its 
proposed operations & funding requirements include district's capital 
improvement plan for current year & next fiscal year; requires that 
certain projects submitted by water management districts to 
department for Statewide Flooding & Sea Level Rise Resilience 
Plan be ranked on separate list;  

• revises list of information that must be submitted by department for 
each project. 

SB 
TBD 

  

HB701 Conerly 12/16/2025 Natural 
Resources & Disasters 
Subcommittee 
 

 

- 36 -

https://www.flhouse.gov/Sections/Bills/billsdetail.aspx?BillId=83326&SessionId=113


Item 11 
 

Attorney’s Report 
 
 

  
To be provided at the meeting. 

 
 
 
 

- 37 -



- 38 -



Item 12.a. 
 

Executive Director’s Report 
 

Water Use Permit 
Demand Summary 

 
 
 
 
 

- 39 -



Summary of Major Water Use Permits in WRWSA Service Area
Updated 12/19/2025

Water Use 
Permit #

Applicant/Permittee Name
Permit 

Expiration 
Date

Permitted 
Average GPD

Actual 12-
Month 
Rolling 

Average 
GPD*

Actual 5-Year 
Rolling Average 

GPD**

Actual Use / 
Permit 

Capacity

WRWSA 
RWSP 

Projection 
for 2025 

GPD

RWSP 
Accuracy 
for 2025 

+/-%

Citrus County

207.007 City of Crystal River 3/27/2032 919,000 839,164 877,476 91.3% 760,000 -13.4%

419.013 City of Inverness 5/18/2031 1,535,000 1,262,677 1,194,245 82.3% 1,010,000 -15.4%

1118.008 Floral City Water Association, Inc. 2/28/2038 395,000 387,740 372,147 98.2% 340,000 -8.6%

2842.011 Citrus County 8/25/2035 4,780,000 3,888,805 3,128,839 81.4% 3,090,000 -1.2%

4153.015 Rolling Oaks Utilities, Inc. 8/20/2038 1,573,000 1,852,323 1,703,564 117.8% 1,590,000 -6.7%

4406.009 Homosassa Special Water District 8/25/2032 951,000 793,740 813,275 83.5% 790,000 -2.9%

7121.007 Citrus County - Charles A Black 8/22/2043 7,181,900 6,243,656 5,460,473 86.9% 5,590,000 2.4%

9791.011 Citrus County - Sugarmill Woods 11/17/2025 2,435,300 2,909,897 2,575,699 119.5% 2,440,000 -5.3%

11839.008 Walden Woods 4/23/2039 187,900 167,940 166,238 89.4% 140,000 -15.8%
Hernando County

5789.015 Hernando County 1/23/2041 24,360,000 22,741,940 21,221,913 93.4% 20,770,000 -2.1%
7627.007 City of Brooksville 8/5/2044 1,709,000 1,545,260 1,414,332 90.4% 1,400,000 -1.0%

Marion County - SWFWMD

1156.013 Bay Laurel Community Development District 2/23/2041 7,560,900 5,535,956 4,476,961 73.2% 4,680,000 4.5%
5643.008 Utilities, Inc. of Florida - Golden Hills 2/23/2036 188,400 133,249 132,053 70.7% 150,000 13.6%
6151.015 Marion County Utilities Consolidated WUP 12/13/2042 9,365,800 10,780,141 8,406,796 115.1% 8,100,000 -3.6%

8020.008 Association of Marion Landing Owners 9/9/2040 152,100 130,880 128,862 86.0% 140,000 8.6%
8339.008 FGUA - Dunellon 3/21/2035 1,117,100 1,164,158 1,312,061 104.2% 1,160,000 -11.6%

Marion County - SJRWMD

2993-12
CSWR-Florida Utility Operating Company - South 
Marion Regional Water System 5/27/2042 231,000 197,622 197,641 85.6% 170,000 -14.0%

2995-8
CSWR-Florida Utility Operating Company - 
Tradewinds Utilities Inc 2/27/2035 227,000 269,338 142,511 118.7% 100,000 -29.8%

3016-4 Ocala East Villas Inc 8/27/2031 107,000 67,674            86,793                  63.2% 100,000 15.2%
3021-5 Rolling Greens Communities 9/13/2025 610,000 508,049          ** 83.3% 400,000 -21.3%

3043-7
Florida Governmental Utility Authority - Ocala 
Oaks 1/6/2040 194,000 85,795            139,824                44.2% 130,000 -7.0%

3130-6
CSWR-Florida Utility Operating Company - Sunray 
Estates 8/17/1940 195,000 178,206          158,605                91.4% 150,000 -5.4%

3137-7 City of Belleview 10/11/2036 1,022,000 1,355,788      1,148,221            132.7% 1,040,000 -9.4%
4578-9 Marion County Utilities Consolidated CUP 9/10/2023* 8,812,000 7,045,266      6,518,942            80.0% 6,890,000 5.7%

50324-10 City of Ocala 8/7/2027 17,540,000 14,448,989    12,986,125          82.4% 13,240,000 2.0%
Sumter County

1368.009 Lake Panasoffkee Water Assoc Inc 10/21/2044 410,000 287,049 289,591 70.0% 320,000 10.5%

6519.01 City of Bushnell 3/29/2031 1,366,800 620,340 522,986 45.4% 740,000 41.5%

7185.007 City of Webster 5/23/2043 386,200 116,326 104,494 30.1% 110,000 5.3%

8135.017 City of Wildwood 3/31/2035 4,583,200 4,064,917 2,752,028 88.7% 3,370,000 22.5%

8193.006 City of Center Hill 11/18/2042 150,000 70,419 70,474 46.9% 80,000 13.5%
13005.012 Village Center Community Development District 1/23/2038 19,345,900 17,407,462 13,987,515 90.0% 19,350,000 38.3%
21031.002 Blue Goose Utility Company 4/7/2054 5,836,600 0 n/a 0.00% n/a n/a
20901.002 Gibson Place Utility Company 1/26/2041 3,985,700 1,015,951 n/a 25.5% 90,000 -91.1%
20721.003 South Sumter Utility Company 2/2/2038 2,600,000 1,758,159 1,553,309 67.6% 1,610,000 3.6%

12-month Rolling Average for most recent available data
5-year Rolling Average for most recent available data
*Renewal submitted; Permitted GPD represents WUP request; utility has been extension granted through November 24, 2025; revision number updated to reflect submittal
**No data reported Jan 2023-June 2024

- 40 -



Item 12.b. 
 

Executive Director’s Report 
 

WMIS WUP 
Notifications 

 
 
 
 
 

- 41 -



Summary of Recent Water Use Permit Activity in WRWSA Service Area Updated December 30, 2025

Water Use 
Permit #

Applicant/Permittee Name Activity Type Date Avg GPD Peak GPD Use Type Status

Citrus County

3673.009 Sugarmill Woods Country Club
Letter 

Modification
10/1/2025 64,600 786,500

Landscape/ 
Recreation

Completed 
12/29/2025

9791.012 Sugarmill Woods Water System Renewal 11/17/2025 3,472,000 4,845,969 Public Supply In Review

Hernando County

9461.004 Mirror Lake
Letter 

Modification
8/18/2025 81,800 410,200 Agricultural In Review

5789.016 Hernando County Utilities
Ownership 

Transfer
12/22/2025 24,360,000 31,911,600 Public Supply

Application 
Withdrawn 
12/23/2025

Marion County - SWFWMD

20174.002 Circle Square Ranch
Letter 

Modification
9/26/2025 661,000 1,790,700 Agricultural

Completed 
12/17/2025

410.008 Ventura Ranch
Letter 

Modification
10/22/2025 483,300 1,513,600 Agricultural

Completed 
12/5/2025

6151.016 Marion County Utilities Consolidated WUP
Letter 

Modification
12/10/2025 9,365,800 11,357,400 Public Supply In Review

Sumter County

21252.000 Meadowbrook Acres of South Central FL New 4/30/2025 15,600 20,600 Agricultural
Application 
Withdrawan 
10/31/2025

21285.000 NACCO Properties, LLC New 9/29/2025 43,800 180,100 Agricultural Issued 12/9/2025

410.008 Ventura Ranch
Letter 

Modification
10/22/2025 483,300 1,513,600 Agricultural Issued 12/23/2025

8135.017 City of Wildwood
Letter 

Modification
11/13/2025 4,583,200 6,870,400 Public Supply Issued 12/10/2025

20949.005 Gibson Place Water Conservation Authority
Letter 

Modification
12/15/2025 4,466,000 22,341,000

Landscape/ 
Recreation

In Review

* Permit #410.008 is located in Marion and Sumter County

- 42 -

https://www38.swfwmd.state.fl.us/Support/wup/WupSimple.aspx?st=3673&rev=9
https://www38.swfwmd.state.fl.us/Support/wup/WupSimple.aspx?st=9791&rev=12
https://www38.swfwmd.state.fl.us/Support/wup/WupSimple.aspx?st=9461&rev=4
https://www38.swfwmd.state.fl.us/Support/wup/WupSimple.aspx?st=5789&rev=16
https://www38.swfwmd.state.fl.us/Support/wup/WupSimple.aspx?st=20174&rev=2
https://www38.swfwmd.state.fl.us/Support/wup/WupSimple.aspx?st=410&rev=8
https://www38.swfwmd.state.fl.us/Support/wup/WupSimple.aspx?st=6151&rev=16
https://www38.swfwmd.state.fl.us/Support/wup/WupSimple.aspx?st=21252&rev=0
https://www38.swfwmd.state.fl.us/Support/wup/WupSimple.aspx?st=21285&rev=0
https://www38.swfwmd.state.fl.us/Support/wup/WupSimple.aspx?st=410&rev=8
https://www38.swfwmd.state.fl.us/Support/wup/WupSimple.aspx?st=8135&rev=17
https://www38.swfwmd.state.fl.us/Support/wup/WupSimple.aspx?st=20949&rev=5


Item 12.c. 
Residential Irrigation Evaluation Programs Update 
Suzy Folsom, Executive Director, will present this item. 

Residential irrigation evaluations are great tools to promote water conservation, and help municipalities 
meet their per capita water usage goals. This is a progress update on the three residential irrigation 
evaluation programs that WRWSA is currently ongoing.  

Phase 7 Residential Irrigation Evaluation Program – SWFWMD 
The Final Report for Phase 7 was transmitted to SWFWMD on December 30, 2025, and will be posted on 
the WRWSA website. 

Phase 8 Residential Irrigation Evaluation Program – SWFWMD 
This program began in May 2025 and will be completed utilizing grant funding from the SWFWMD WISE 
program. The first application for Phase 8a will include 57 evaluations and will be completed within 12 
months. 55 of the 57 evaluations have been completed. The application for funding for Phase 8b has 
been submitted and will start upon completion of Phase 8a.  

Participating Utility 
Total Evaluations To-date Target # of 

Evaluations for 
Phase 8a and 8b 

Percent of Target 
Evaluations 
Completed Core Enhanced 

Citrus 3 3 20 30% 
Hernando 2 41 60 72% 
Marion (West of 75) 0 6 20 30% 
Villages VCCDD-LSSA 0 0 8 0% 
Villages NSCUDD-VWCA 0 0 16 0% 

Total 5 50 124 44% 

Residential Irrigation Evaluation Program Pilot – SJRWMD 
WRWSA started this new program in October 2023. 58% of the planned evaluations have been 
completed in through the end of April 2025. The timeframe for evaluation is complete.  One lesson 
learned in this pilot program is that the mailings targeting users with greater than 20,000 gallons per 
month of average water usage did not yield the target number of 60 evaluations.  This threshold will be 
lowered for future phases.  

Participating Utility Total Evaluations To-date Target # of Evaluations Percent Complete 
City of Belleview 9 20 35% 
Marion County (East of 75) 26 40 65% 

Total 35 60 55% 

Staff Recommendation: 

This item is presented for the Board’s information and no action is required. 

- 43 -



- 44 -



Item 12.d. 
 

Executive Director’s Report 
 

Correspondence 
 
 
 
 
 

- 45 -



- 46 -



- 47 -



- 48 -



- 49 -



- 50 -



- 51 -



- 52 -



- 53 -



- 54 -



- 55 -



- 56 -



- 57 -



- 58 -



- 59 -



- 60 -



- 61 -



December 7, 2025 

Ms. Suzannah Folsom 
Withlacoochee River Water Supply Authority 
3600 West Sovereign Path – Suite 228 
Lecanto, Florida 34461  

Dear Ms. Folsom: 

Enclosed is a listing of the interest revenue and transfers to as well as expenditures Citrus 
County made from the renewal and replacement fund for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2025.  These expenditures were allowed by the Water Supply Contract between 
Withlacoochee Water Supply Authority and Citrus County, Florida, dated October 12, 2016.  
This information is provided so that your records may accurately reflect the change in the 
amount of this fund.  The following is a summary of the transactions in the renewal and 
replacement fund: 

Beginning Balance 10/1/2024 $2,654,154.47 
Deposit 270,000.00
Interest Revenue 106,126.23 
Less: Expenses (247,689.19)

Ending Balance 9/30/2025 $2,782,591.51

A detailed report of the above activity is attached along with copies of the individual invoices.  
If you have any questions regarding these transactions, please call me at 352-341-6464.  

Sincerely, 

Susan Sullivan, CPA 
Chief Financial Officer 

Enclosures 

Cc via e-mail:  Steve Howard, County Administrator  
 Ken Cheek, Water Resources Director 

TRACI PERRY 
EX-OFFICIO CLERK  

TO THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
Citrus County, Florida 

              __________________________________________ 

110 North Apopka Avenue, Inverness, FL  34450 
(352) 341-6424  Fax (352) 341-6458 

Finance@citrusclerk.org

- 62 -



Beginning Balance 2,654,154.47$ 

Transfers In

10/07/24 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

11/08/24 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

12/06/24 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

01/08/25 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

02/07/25 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

03/07/25 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

04/08/25 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

05/08/25 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

06/06/25 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

07/09/25 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

08/08/25 Contractual transfers 22,500.00

09/08/25 Contractual transfers 22,500.00 270,000.00

Interest Earnings

11/01/24 Monthly interest earnings 10,696.04

12/01/24 Monthly interest earnings 7,143.29

01/01/25 Monthly interest earnings 8,400.86

02/01/25 Monthly interest earnings 9,683.52

03/01/25 Monthly interest earnings 8,155.17

04/01/25 Monthly interest earnings 8,769.54

05/01/25 Monthly interest earnings 8,550.98

06/01/25 Monthly interest earnings 9,287.25

07/01/25 Monthly interest earnings 8,805.06

08/01/25 Monthly interest earnings 9,183.46

09/01/25 Monthly interest earnings 9,022.60

09/30/25 Monthly interest earnings 8,428.46 106,126.23

Repair & Maintenance

12/09/24 Citrus Well Drilling 218,345.00

08/04/25 In Universal Controls Inc 2,934.75

10/24/25 John Mader Enterprises 15,724.00

06/11/25 Pasco Pipe Supply 4,257.00

06/16/25 Grainger 2,522.80

06/16/25 Grainger 2,182.92

09/05/25 Avanti Company 645.72

09/05/25 Avanti Company 1,077.00 (247,689.19)

Ending Balance 2,782,591.51$ 

Detail of Transactions

- 63 -



- 64 -



- 65 -



- 66 -



- 67 -



- 68 -



- 69 -



REMIT TO: WAREHOUSE:

accounting@pascopipesupply.com
1-800-282-8152

MERCHANDISE CANNOT BE RETURNED WITHOUT PRIOR AUTHORIZATION
Any shortages or descrepancies concerning this order must be reported within 24 hours.

SOLD TO: SHIP TO:

CUSTOMER PO JOB NAME JOB # SLS DUE DATE SHIP DATE SHIPPING METHOD

LINE ITEM/DESCRIPTION UOM QTY UNIT PRICE TAX TERM DISCOUNT EXTENDED

                                                                                                  

1 of 1

               

2026348 - 4/18/25
INVOICE

       PASCO PIPE SUPPLY                   PASCO PIPE SUPPLY                    
       14700 US HWY 19                     14700 US HWY 19                                        

From Order: 2026348

       HUDSON, FL  34667                   HUDSON, FL  34667                    

200262 

                                                                                

001

17:14:57  
 5/02/25

                                                                                
                                              Telephone: 727-863-4339                             
                                                                                                  
 
 
 
 
          CITRUS COUNTY UTILITY OPS.                            CITRUS COUNTY UTILITY OPS.        
          110 N. Apopka Ave                                     6000 W FRONTIER LANE              
          Inverness, FL  34450                                  BEVERLY HILLS, FL  34465          
                                                                                                  
                                                                                                  
                                                                                                  
     ORDERED BY: CHARLES THOMPSON                                                                 
 
 
 
 86657                  CAB 1 WELL              ACD  5/18/25  4/18/25 Direct          Prepay/Add  
 
 
 
  1 /00000012518      10 FLG GLOBE CHK VM1810A.1      EA      1    4132.0000  N    .0             4,132.00  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Subtotal:

 Tax:

 Freight:

 Other:

 Total Due:

                                                                                        4,132.00 

                                                                                             .00 

                                                                                          125.00 

                                                                                             .00 

                                                                                                        4,257.00 - 70 -



- 71 -



- 72 -



- 73 -



- 74 -



- 75 -



- 76 -



- 77 -



- 78 -



- 79 -



- 80 -



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
December 15, 2025 
 
Paige TaraCruz, Environmental Scientist 2 
Southwest Florida Water Management District 
2379 Broad Street 
Brooksville, FL 34604-6899 
 
Subject:  Q324 2024 Regional Water Supply Plan Update - Schedule Revision  
 
Dear Ms. Tara-Cruz: 
 
The schedule of the Q324 2024 Regional Water Supply Plan Update project has been delayed for several 
reasons. The table below lists the original estimated completion dates and the revised estimated 
completion dates for the project, along with the reason for the schedule delay.   
 

Task Task Description 

Original 
Completion 

Date 

Revised 
Completion 

Date Reason 

1 Population and 
Demand Estimates 6/30/2023 6/30/2024 

Difficulty reconciling WUP and PSAR 
demand data from SWFWMD and 
SJRWMD 

2 Conservation and 
Reuse Evaluation 8/31/2023 5/31/2025 Requires the demand projections task 

to complete 

3 Water Sources 
Evaluation 9/30/2023 9/30/2025 

This task has been delayed to 
coincide with the availability of the 
new Central Springs Model 

4 Water Supply Project 
Options 1/31/2024 11/30/2025 Required completion of the previous 

tasks 

5 Recommendations 4/30/2024 12/1/2025 Required completion of the previous 
tasks 

6 Draft Regional Water 
Supply Plan 7/31/2024 12/15/2025 Required completion of the previous 

tasks 

7 Final Regional Water 
Supply Plan 9/30/2024 6/1/2026 Required completion of the previous 

tasks 
 
Please do not hesitate to call me at 813-395-4004 or email at sfolsom@wrwsa.org if you have any 
questions.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Suzannah Folsom, PE, PMP 
Executive Director 
 
cc:  Lisa Krentz, Hazen 

- 81 -

mailto:sfolsom@wrwsa.org


- 82 -



Item 12.e. 
 

Executive Director’s Report 
 

News Articles 
 
 
 
 
 

- 83 -



County administrator believes landfill operator trying to get stink under control 

by Marv Balousek | October 29, 2025 

Source: Villages-News.com 

After a visit earlier this week to the controversial Heart of Florida landfill near Lake 
Panasoffkee, Sumter County Administrator Bradley Arnold told commissioners Tuesday night 
he believes the company is trying to solve its stinking problem. 

Area residents aren’t convinced, objecting to a plan to use injection wells that would pump 
leachate beneath the Florida aquifer used for drinking water. 

The issue continues to play out before commissioners, even though the county has no role 
because the landfill on County Road 529A is within Bushnell’s city limits. 

The Heart of Florida landfill on County Road 529A. 

“They do feel they are going to be able to solve the issues,” Arnold said, adding that the landfill 
has a new manager. 

He said company officials also recognize their responsibility for smells coming from the 
landfill’s tenant, a composting operation. 

Bushnell has given the company, A.C.M.S., Inc., until December to correct the problems and 
hired Arcadis, a national environmental firm, to monitor its efforts. 

Some of the stink may be caused by leachate created when storm water becomes contaminated 
by flowing over the landfill. The company wants to use injection wells to get rid of it instead of 
trucking it to a wastewater treatment plant. 

County Chairman Don Wiley wrote a letter two weeks ago to a Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection official requesting a public hearing that would include an explanation 
on whether geologic conditions would be appropriate for injection wells. 

- 84 -

https://www.villages-news.com/author/marv-balousek/
https://www.villages-news.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/06/The-Heart-of-Florida-landfill-on-County-Road-529.jpeg


Earlier, Commissioner Andrew Bilardello wrote a letter opposing the wells. 

The company apparently has withdrawn its permit application for an exploratory well and now is 
seeking a permit to burn off methane from the landfill. 

“The smell continues,” said area resident Jeremy Scott. 

Leslie Strickland of Sumterville said residents do not want injection wells because they 
sometimes contaminate drinking water. 

Wiley wrote a “sad letter,” according to Oren May, which did not take a stand against injection 
wells. 

Craig Bothwell said nearly 700,000 injection wells are located in the United States and 7,500 of 
them failed over a three-year period. 

Alexandra St. Martin said the company has enough money to build its own wastewater treatment 
plant instead of using injection wells. 

 

 
  

- 85 -



Bill bans local governments from regulating wetlands and water pollution 

By Nick Papantonis, WFTV.com 

December 07, 2025 at 11:38 am EST 

 

(Mark Kostich/Getty Images/iStockphoto) 

ORLANDO, Fla. — Florida lawmakers’ push to pre-empt local governments from controlling 
development within their borders continued this week when a pair of lawmakers filed bills that 
keep councils and commissions high and dry. 

SB 718, filed by Marion County State Senator Stan McClain, restricts local governments from 
passing regulations related to water quality, pollution control, pollutant discharge prevention or 
removal, or wetlands. 

McClain’s bill was matched with an identical House proposal filed by Pasco representative 
Randy Maggard.  

The bill follows another one by McClain, SB 354, which would require local governments to 
rubber stamp mega developments that met a particular set of rules set by the state. 

Orange County commissioners and staff say lawmakers are being pressured by developers who 
find it easier to convince their allies in Tallahassee to pass a sweeping bill than face residents 
who want more restrictions on development. 

- 86 -



There has been a tough push from developers eyeing the Deseret Ranch property in east Orange 
County, which fell into the county’s newly enacted Rural Boundary last year. 

Lawmakers snuck a provision into a bill last session, SB 180, that pre-empted counties from 
enacting any new restrictions on development dating back to August of 2024 – before the rural 
boundary was voted into place. 

SB 180 is now the subject of a lawsuit by local governments, who claim the state is infringing 
on home rule. 

Proponents of preemption traditionally argue it’s better for the state to have a uniform set of rules 
rather than a patchwork developers need to navigate city-by-city. 

McClain is a contractor by trade whose platform included water conservation and limited 
government. His staff has not responded to multiple requests for comment, including questions 
about where this push to control local development is coming from. 

 

 
 

  

- 87 -



Wildwood officials relieved to get good news about future growth 

by Marv Balousek | November 3, 2025 
Source: Villages-News.com 
 
Wildwood no longer faces a crisis in wastewater treatment capacity, City Manager Jason 
McHugh told commissioners Monday. 

Maintenance improvements and construction progress on the new wastewater treatment plant 
mean the city’s capacity is adequate to handle new developments. 

McHugh said a temporary DAVCO plant will be installed next August, which will increase the 
city’s daily capacity to 4.5 million gallons. 

Commissioners heard reports on wastewater capacity, construction progress and the issuance of 
revenue bonds to pay for the new plant at a Monday morning workshop meeting. 

Wildwood’s rapid growth, including new homes in the Villages of Southern Oaks along with 
apartment and commercial projects, have strained the city’s wastewater treatment capacity. 

In May last year, commissioners put a hold on some residential and commercial projects due to 
capacity concerns. 

Rainfall that infiltrates the system is a major factor boosting Wildwood’s wastewater treatment 
levels. 

McHugh said less rainfall since Hurricane Milton last year reduced daily wastewater flows to 1.9 
million gallons last May, increasing to 2.4 million gallons in September. 

The new plant and related projects such as a pump station and effluent storage improvements are 
expected to cost $162 million, said Assistant City Manager Cassandra Smith. 

She said the city has financing of about $40 million in grants, fees and transfers from the general 
fund. 

- 88 -

https://www.villages-news.com/author/marv-balousek/


Wildwood has applied for another $87 million in grants and loans, but approval and the timing 
remain uncertain. 

In February, the city will issue $70 million in revenue bonds to cover a major portion of the cost. 
Another bond issue is planned for early 2026 when the status of the pending grants and loans is 
clearer. 

“We’re probably going to have a sizable second bond (issue),” Smith said. 

Bonds will be repaid with user fees. 

Bond advisor Natalie Sidor of the Public Resources Advisory Group said Wildwood has 
prepared well for the bond issue by increasing wastewater user fees for the last few years. 

Mayor Ed Wolf said the city’s growth should interest investors. 

“There’s so much on the horizon that it should be very attractive for the underwriters to sell these 
bonds,” he said. 

  

- 89 -



SWFWD Water Restrictions Now in Place 

 
Posted Thursday, December 4, 2025 

Source: The Bradenton Times 

Southwest Florida Water Management District 

Whether we drink it, bathe in it, cook with it, or flush it, we most often associate our water with 
the provider that pipes it into our homes and to whom we pay our bill. It might be the water 
system operated by the city or county in which we reside, or perhaps an entity like the Forida 
Governmental Utility Authority (FGUA) that owns and operates many systems throughout the 
state. But have you ever thought about the “bigger picture” of the water supply that comes into 
your home?  

The reality is that most water issues are regional, not local, and hydrology – the science that 
encompasses the occurrence, distribution, movement and properties of the waters of the earth – 
doesn’t follow city or county boundaries. As a result, the Florida Legislature established five 
water management districts and gave them authority over specific regions. One of the five 
districts – the Southwest Florida Water Management District, often referred to as “swiftmud” 
(SWFWMD) – has just imposed some restrictions and other districts might follow suit.  

Southwest Florida District Water Restrictions Effective December 1 

SWFWMD has issued what it calls “Phase 1 Water Shortage Restrictions,” effective December 
1, 2025 through July 1, 2026. These restrictions apply to all of Citrus, DeSoto, Hardee, 
Hernando, Hillsborough, Manatee, Pasco, Pinellas, Polk, Sarasota and Sumter counties; portions 
of Charlotte, Highlands and Lake counties; the City of Dunnellon and The Villages in Marion 
County; and the portion of Gasparilla Island in Lee County.  

What Are The Restrictions? Why Are They Being Imposed?  

- 90 -



While the restrictions do not change allowable watering schedules, they do prohibit “wasteful 
and unnecessary” water use, such as allowing water to be dispersed without any practical 
purpose, using water in a grossly inefficient manner and using water for a purpose that can be 
readily accomplished by other means. SWFWMD currently has a 13-inch rainfall deficit 
compared to the average 12-month total, primarily due to lower than normal rainfall during the 
summer rainy season. Water levels in aquifers, rivers and lakes within the District and statewide 
are declining and are anticipated to decline further as the dry season progresses.  

Do These Restrictions Effect When I Can Water My Lawn?  

SWFWMD’s current twice-per-week lawn watering schedules remain in effect, except where 
stricter measures have been imposed by local governments. Lawn watering accounts for more 
than 50% of household water usage. for more information on SWFWMD’s lawn watering days 
and times, remembering that local governments may have imposed stricter measures.  

What Water Management District Am I In?  

In addition to SWFWMD, the water management districts in Florida include Northwest Florida, 
Suwannee River, St. Johns River and South Florida. to determine your district based upon your 
address. to view a color map of the districts statewide. 

Always Check Local Restrictions First  

It's important to note that when it comes to water restrictions, including watering days and times, 
always refer to your local city or county regulations first, as these are sometimes more strict than 
regional restrictions. You can find links to all county and city regulations  

How Can I Help? 

While governmental authorities work hard to keep our water supplies plentiful, clean and safe, 
their success is greatly limited without the understanding and cooperation of homeowners and 
other users in protecting and conserving this precious resource. For more information including 
helpful tips, visit SWFWMD’s Water 101 For Homeowners page  

 

- 91 -




	WRWSA Board of Directors Mtg - January 14 2026 
	WRWSA Board of Directors / Mtg Dates - Jan 2026
	WRWSA Board Mtg Notice - Jan 14 2026 
	Lecanto Map _ Directions-2pgs
	1Map .pdf
	2Driving Directions .2

	AGENDA - January 14, 2026
	6a Approval of Minutes
	6a Exh 11.12.2025 WRWSA Bd Minutes draft 

	6b Bills to be Paid
	6b Exh 12.17.2025 FY 2025-26 Bills to be Paid final

	7 Election of Board Officers
	7a Exh Board Member Duties and Responsibilities 3.18.2015
	7b Exh Election of Board Officers

	8 Charles A Black Wellfield - Renewal and Replacement Annual Report
	8 Exh FY 25 WRWSA Report- Revised

	9 Regional Water Supply Plan - Draft Report
	10 Legislative Report Update
	10 Exh 2026 Bills for Tracking

	11 Attorney's Report
	12a Water Use Permit Demand Summary
	12a Exh WUP Summary

	12b WMIS WUP Notifications
	12b Exh WUP Activity Report

	12c Irrigation Evaluation Program Update
	12d Correspondence
	12d Exh 2025_11_05 Ltr-KCheek - CAB WF COLA FY2026 sjf
	12d Exh 2025_11_19 WRWSA Ltr - FL DEP Air Permit - Track Line sjf
	12d Exh 2025_11_24 FL Res and Env Analysis Center - Public Lands
	12d Exh 2025_12_03 WRWSA Citrus Co FY24-25 Reimb Request
	12d ExH 2025_12_07 Ltr FY 25 WRWSA Report- Revised
	12d Exh 2025_12_15 Ltr PTara - Q324 RWSP Schedule Revision 12152025
	12d Exh 2025_12_23 Ltr to ABrockway - FY2024-25 LGG Closure

	12e News Articles
	12e Exh Articles December 2025

	13 Other Business
	14 Next Meeting - March 18, 2026
	15 Adjournment
	Blank Page



